
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

Port of Kennewick  

Regular Commission Business Meeting 

Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers (via GoToMeeting) 

350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick Washington 

 

August 22, 2023 

2:00 p.m. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL  

 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 

 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Direct Deposit and ePayments August 15, 2023 

B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated August 22, 2023 

C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes August 8, 2023 

D. Approval to Surplus Property; Resolution 2023-24 

E. Adopting the Amendment of the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement and Bylaws of the Benton-

Franklin Council of Governments; Resolution 2023-25 

 

VI. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Water Rights Update, Dan Haller of Aspect Consulting (LARRY)  

B. 2023-2024 Budget Update (NICK) 

 

VII. ACTION ITEM 

A. Washington State Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO) Local Parks Maintenance (LPM) 

Grant Application; Resolution 2023-26 (TANA) 

 

VIII. REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Kennewick Waterfront 

1. Clover Island Stage Update (LARRY/NICK/AMBER) 

2. Clover Island Marina Handbook (AMBER)   

3. Columbia Gardens Container Bathroom Art Wrap (TANA) 

  

Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers will be open to the public during Commission Meetings.  

However, the Port will continue to use GoToMeeting to provide remote access,  

and Commissioners and the Port team will attend remotely. 

 

To participate and make public comments remotely, please call in at: 1-866-899-4679, Access Code: 394-295-373 

Or, join on-line at the following link:  https://meet.goto.com/394295373  

 

 

 

 

tel:+18773092073,,963104565
https://meet.goto.com/394295373


AGENDA 

Port of Kennewick  

Regular Commission Business Meeting 

August 22, 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

IX. REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 

B. Vista Field Development (TIM) 

C.  Port Facilities Update (TIM)  

D.  Commission Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 

E.  Non-Scheduled Items 
(LISA/BRIDGETTE/TANA/NICK/LARRY/AMBER/MICHAEL/CAROLYN/TIM/KEN/TOM/SKIP) 

 

X. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

PLEASE SILENCE ALL NOISE MAKING DEVICES 



 



PORT OF KENNEWICK 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 

    
      

  DRAFT   AUGUST 8, 2023 MINUTES 

   

Page 1 of 4 

Commission Meeting recordings, with agenda items linked to corresponding audio, can be found on the 

Port’s website at:  https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/ 
 

Commission President Skip Novakovich called the Regular Commission Meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. via 

GoToMeeting Teleconference.  
  

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL 
 

The following were present: 
 

Board Members: Skip Novakovich, President (via telephone) 

 Kenneth Hohenberg, Vice President (via telephone) 

 Thomas Moak, Secretary (via telephone) 
   

Staff Members: Tim Arntzen, Chief Executive Officer (via telephone) 

 Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy Chief Executive Officer (via telephone) 

 Nick Kooiker, Deputy Chief Executive Officer/CFO (via telephone) 

 Larry Peterson, Director of Planning (via telephone) 

 Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate (via telephone) 

 Lisa Schumacher, Special Project Coordinator 

 Bridgette Scott, Executive Assistant (via telephone) 

 David Phongsa, Marketing & Capital Projects Coordinator 

 Carolyn Lake, Port Counsel (via telephone)   
 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Mr. Peterson led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT   
Mike Luzzo, Kennewick.  Mr. Luzzo has been asking about Duffy’s Pond and has called the Department 

of Ecology Central Division and they have not responded.  Mr. Luzzo noted that getting rid of the Trees 

of Heaven by Duffy’s Pond is good.  Mr. Luzzo is trying to look at what we do as a Port and what the 

City of Kennewick is doing right now, as far as making sure Duffy’s Pond is taken care of.  The properties 

adjoining Clover Island are taken care of, at least with the City and the Army Corps of Engineers, and his 

contact is Kye Carpenter and he has reached out to Lieutenant Colonel KingSlack.  Mr. Luzzo was asked 

by Ms. Bader Inglima to pass along the information and that is what he is doing. 

 

No further comments were made.   

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/


PORT OF KENNEWICK   AUGUST 8, 2023 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

 Page 2 of 4 

 

CONSENT AGENDA                   
A. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated July 31, 2023 

Direct Deposit and E-Payments totaling $124,697.86 

B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated August 8, 2023 

            Expense Fund Voucher Number 105044 through 105109 for a grand total of $164,732.41 

C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes July 25, 2023 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Hohenberg moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented;  

Commissioner Moak seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 

3:0. 

 

REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS  
A. Vista Field Art Walk Update 

Mr. Phongsa gave a brief presentation of the Art Walk (Exhibit A) held at Vista Field on  

August 4, 2023.  Mr. Phongsa stated approximately 100 people attended and the event increased 

awareness of Vista Field.  Mr. Phongsa stated the next event at Vista Field is the Bike Expo on 

September 14, 2023. Mr. Phongsa stated Saturday, August 12, 2023 is the last Summer Saturdays 

Night Market at Columbia Gardens from 4:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

 

B. Benton Franklin Council of Governments 

Mr. Arntzen introduced the Benton Franklin Council of Governments (BFCOG) bylaw update.  

Mr. Arntzen stated Commissioner Novakovich was the past chair of BFCOG and worked with 

their staff to update the bylaws and Ms. Lake has reviewed the documents.  Mr. Arntzen stated the 

updated documents do not change the relationship that the Port has with BFCOG. 

 

Commissioner Novakovich provided a brief history of the BFCOG organizational documents and 

stated the new documents are an update to the previous set up bylaws and various policies.  

Commissioner Novakovich stated the Port needs to do the following: review and sign the Interlocal 

Agreement, which is between all of the jurisdictional partners, and review and approve the 

Resolution ratifying the bylaws that were adopted by BFCOG Board of Directors.     

 

Commissioners Hohenberg and Moak are prepared to move forward with the Interlocal Agreement 

and the Resolution.   

 

Commissioner Novakovich asked staff to put the Resolution and Interlocal Agreement on the 

Consent Agenda for the August 25, 2023 Meeting.   

 

C. Water Rights Update 

Mr. Peterson reported that Benton County is very interested in pursuing a new purchase and sale 

agreement for the transfer of water rights to address compliance with water usage to keep the 

Benton County fairgrounds green.  Additionally, it will help with the $15,000,000 expansion plans 

for the fairground.  Mr. Peterson stated our water rights expert will be available on August 25, 

2023 to discuss the general concept of potentially transferring water rights to Benton County.  



PORT OF KENNEWICK   AUGUST 8, 2023 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

 Page 3 of 4 

 

Commission and staff discussed the possibility of transferring the water rights to Benton County 

for use at the Benton County fairgrounds.  

 

D. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 

Commissioners reported on their respective committee meetings. 

 

E. Non-Scheduled Items   

Ms. Bader Inglima reported that John and Dara Foster, 2015 Friend of the Port, continue to walk 

the island and love the improvements the Port has been making.  The Foster’s wanted Ms. Bader 

Inglima to share with the Commission how much they enjoy the 1135 improvements with the 

additional trail, and the new flowers, bushes, and trees along the shoreline.  The Foster’s shared 

how much better it looks and how much they appreciate the investment that is being made on 

behalf of the public.  

 

Mr. Kooiker stated the CEO evaluation process requires the committee to meet before September 

15th, and he will be assembling the committee for the 2023 evaluation, which consists of Ms. Lake, 

Commissioner Hohenberg, and Mr. Kooiker.  Mr. Kooiker stated the committee is a two-year 

appointment by the Commission and this is Commissioner Hohenberg’s second year.  Following 

the evaluation, the Commission will need to appoint a new Commissioner for the next two-year 

term.   

 

Mr. Arntzen thanked the Commission for their continued working relationship and positive 

comments with Benton County. 

 

Commissioner Hohenberg thanked Ms. Bader Inglima for the feedback on the 1135 project.  He 

has been to the island several times with Mr. Arntzen and people have been very appreciative.  Mr. 

Arntzen has said in the past, a lot of people don’t know care who made the improvements, they 

just know they like the end results.  Commissioner Hohenberg stated it is nice that people take time 

to comment, like the earlier comments related to Duffy’s Pond.  Duffy’s Pond is still a jewel, and 

the Port has done a lot of work over the years to clean it up and Commissioner Hohenberg knows 

there is more to do, but it is nice when people recognize the important part that the Port has played. 

 

Commissioner Novakovich asked staff to follow up with Mr. Luzzo to let him know what the Port 

is doing.  

 

Ms. Bader Inglima has been having regular conversations with Mr. Luzzo and he has a passion for 

water quality, the shoreline, and following the ecology rules.  It is a wonderful thing to see our 

citizens paying attention to the work that is being done and Ms. Bader Inglima will continue that 

relationship. 

 

 

 

 

 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   AUGUST 8, 2023 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

 Page 4 of 4 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
Mike Luzzo, Kennewick.  Mr. Luzzo inquired if the Port was aware that the McNary pool (Lake Wallula), 

per RCW, is a state registered water storage area.  When staff is discussing water rights, Mr. Luzzo wanted 

to know where the Port stands. 

 

Ms. Bader Inglima stated that she and Mr. Peterson will be more than happy to visit with Mr. Luzzo after 

the Meeting for further discussion.   

 

No further comments were made.  

 

COMMISSION COMMENTS   
No comments were made. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  
With no further business to bring before the Board; the meeting was adjourned 2:39 p.m.  

 

APPROVED: PORT of KENNEWICK 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

  

      
 

Skip Novakovich, President 
 

 

 

 

       
 

Kenneth Hohenberg, Vice President 

 

 
 

 

      

 
 

Thomas Moak, Secretary 

 



VISTA FIELD ARTWALK
August 4, 2023

EXHIBIT A



INTRODUCTION

• This is the second event at Vista Field this year, 
showcasing our local artists. Blending art, food, music,  
culture, and community.
• This event occurred the weekend after City of 
Richland’s Art In The Park annual event that draws 
thousands of people.  I was in attendance to market 
this event with flyers.
• Wind caused us to end the event a little earlier than 
we had scheduled, had vendors packing up early, 
and probably affected less people than expected.

EXHIBIT A



L O C AL
PAR T NE R S H I PS

• Washington State Arts Commission
• Arts Foundation of The Mid-Columbia
• SOCO (South Columbia Creative 
District)
• Artist Alley of Downtown Kennewick

EXHIBIT A



LOCAL NEWS 
COVERAGE

• NBC Right Now 
• CBS Nonstop Local News
• Fox 11 and 41
• KAPP-KVEW/Apple Valley News Now
• Social Media Reach: 500+
• Facebook, Instagram, LinkedIn

EXHIBIT A



E V E N T  P H O T O S

EXHIBIT A



SUMMARY

• About 100 people in attendance (visitors &
vendors)
• Increased awareness
• Press for Vista Field
• Vibrancy
• Great business for local artists
• New community partners
• Community focused
• Sets us up nicely for next event in September

EXHIBIT A



PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-24 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE  
PORT OF KENNEWICK AUTHORIZING THE  

PORT CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
TO SELL AND CONVEY SURPLUS PROPERTY  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick met this 22nd day of August, 2023, 

a quorum of the Commissioners being present; and 
 

WHEREAS, from time to time it is necessary to surplus items no longer needed for Port District 
purposes; and 
 

WHEREAS, RCW 53.08.090 provides that the Port Commissioners may authorize the Port Chief 
Executive Officer to sell and convey surplus property; and 

 
WHEREAS, prior to each such disposition of Port property, the Port Chief Executive Officer is directed 

to present to the Commission an itemized list of the property and to make written certification that the listed 
property is no longer needed for Port District purposes.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Port of Kennewick Commissioners authorize the Chief 

Executive Officer to surplus Port property no longer needed for Port purposes as attached in “Exhibit A”. 
 

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Port of Kennewick this 22nd day of August 2023. 
  

PORT of KENNEWICK 
         BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

By:_________________________________ 
 
SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 
 
 
KENNETH HOHENBERG, Vice President 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 

 
THOMAS MOAK, Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-24 
 

“Exhibit A” 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

CFO/Auditor Certification:   _____________________________________ 
    Nick Kooiker   Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 

Resolution No. 2023-25 
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK ADOPTING THE  

AMENDMENT OF THE INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT  
AND BYLAWS OF THE 

BENTON-FRANKLIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Revised Code of Washington (RCW) Chapter 36, Laws of 1959, as 
amended (RCW 36.70.060) and Chapter 84, Laws of 1965, Extraordinary Session, (RCW 36.64.080), Port 
of Kennewick is by Interlocal Agreement, a member of the regional agency known as the Benton-Franklin 
Council of Governments (BFCOG); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of the Benton-Franklin Council of Governments (BFCOG) determined that 
amendments made to the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement and Bylaws documents amended September 
18, 2020, required review and revision to rectify inconsistencies prudent to ensure organizational 
effectiveness; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 19, 2023, the BFCOG Board adopted the amended documents Interlocal 

Cooperation Agreement of the Benton-Franklin Council of Government, and Bylaws of the Benton-
Franklin Council of Governments, as a total and complete replacement for all previous Interlocal 
Agreements and Bylaws of BFCOG, by the process outlined in the previously adopted Bylaws. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Port of Kennewick Board of Commissioners 
hereby approves the attached Interlocal Agreement between Port of Kennewick and BFGOG; and 
authorizes the Port’s Chief Executive Officer to execute the Agreement and instructs the CEO to take all 
action necessary to implement such Agreement. 
 

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Port of Kennewick on the 22nd day of August 2023. 
 

PORT OF KENNEWICK 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
      By:  _____________________________ 
 
       SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President 

             
      By:   _____________________________ 

 
       KENNETH HOHENBERG, Vice President 
 
      By: _____________________________ 
 
       THOMAS MOAK, Secretary 



BENTON-FRANKLIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
Regional Planning Agency for Benton & Franklin Counties 

Benton-Franklin Metropolitan Planning Organization • Regional Transportation Planning Organization 

Benton-Franklin Economic Development District 

RESOLUTION 04-23 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF THE BENTON-FRANKLIN COUNCIL OF 
GOVERNMENTS (BFCOG) AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT OF THE INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT OF THE BENTON-FRANKLIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

WHEREAS, the jurisdictions referred to collectively as Members of the Benton-Franklin Council of 
Governments (BFCOG) by Interlocal Agreement have previously acknowledged the need to engage in 
cooperative planning and decision-making on transportation and economic development issues and the 
benefits to be derived therefrom; AND 

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Agreement of the Benton-Franklin Council of Governments (BFCOG), as 
approved on September 18, 2020, in Article 16 – Amendments, indicates the process by which the Interlocal 
Agreement may be amended by a majority vote of all members of the Agency; AND 

WHEREAS, the BFCOG Board by Resolution 08-21, A Resolution of the Board of the Benton-Franklin 
Council of Governments Authorizing Bylaws Review, directed the formation of a Bylaws Review Committee 
recognizing that the current Bylaws amendments “were made expeditiously to meet Federal requirement” 
and that “a review of the Bylaws is necessary for the purpose of rectifying inconsistencies and is prudent 
to ensure organizational effectiveness”; AND 

WHEREAS, through the Bylaw review process, past and current changes to the Benton-Franklin Council 
of Governments Bylaws created inconsistencies between those Bylaws and the Interlocal Agreement; AND 

WHEREAS, an amended Interlocal Agreement has been developed in cooperation between staff and the 
BFCOG Board, which rectifies identified inconsistencies between the BFCOG Bylaws and said Interlocal 
Agreement; AND 

WHEREAS, this amended Interlocal Agreement has been reviewed by the BFCOG Bylaws Committee, the 
BFCOG Executive Committee, and stakeholder agencies; NOW THEREFORE 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of the Benton-Franklin Council of Governments hereby authorizes 
amendment of the Benton-Franklin Council of Governments Interlocal Agreement (Exhibit 1); AND 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of BFCOG now authorizes the Executive Director to provide 
this Interlocal Agreement to all member jurisdictions for execution and ratification by Resolution on behalf 
of the organization. 

ADOPTED by the Benton-Franklin Council of Governments Board by affirmative vote at the regularly 
scheduled Board meeting held on the 17th day of March 2023. 

Exhibit 1 – BFCOG Interlocal Agreement 

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



1 | P a g e
BFCOG Interlocal Agreement - Amended 5.19.2023 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT OF THE 
BENTON-FRANKLIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

Amended May 19, 2023, BFCOG Resolution 04-23   
(As a total and complete replacement for all previous Interlocal Agreements) 

PARTICIPANTS 

Participants in this agreement shall be whichever of the parties ratify this agreement. If 
any party fails to ratify this agreement, such action shall not affect this agreement as it 
pertains to the remaining parties.  

WHEREAS, the Port of Kennewick authorized the execution of this 

Agreement by Resolution No. _______________________________________, 

Adopted on ______________________________________  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands. 

By: _____________________________  Attest: __________________________ 

Title: ____________________________ Title: ___________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ Date: ___________________________ 

August 22, 2023

2023-25

Tim Arntzen

Chief Executive Officer

Bridgette Scott

Executive Assistant/Clerk



 



Port of Kennewick

2023 Mid-Year 
Budget Review
2023-2024 Budget

Managing Resources & 
Accountability 
by Nick Kooiker, Deputy CEO/CFO/Auditor



• Because the Port uses accrual 
accounting final figures will 
change; we are still accruing 
expenses back to the 
beginning of 2023.

• These numbers are in draft 
form; they will be finalized in 
the Port’s annual financial 
report and audited by the 
State Auditor’s Office.

• Port team has already started 
planning for 2025/26 budget. Budget Disclosures



Operating Division
Revenue & Expenses

Revenues:
 $699,028 

Expenses:
$2,053,654

• 25% Benchmark
• Operating 

revenues at 29%

• 25% Benchmark
• Operating expenses 

at 23%

• Vista Field 
Maintenance Costs

• Shoreline 
Maintenance Costs

• Temporary Labor



Non-Operating Division
Revenue & Expenses

Revenues:
 $5,144,993 

Expenses:
$984,766

• 25% Benchmark
• Non-Operating 

Revenues at 34%

• 2023 property taxes 
already booked;        
~ $200k higher due 
to new construction

• Interest Income 
$20k/month

• RCCF 1135 Project

• 25% Benchmark
• Non-Operating 

Expenses at 24%

• Vista Field Loan 
Expense



Capital Projects 2023/2024

Item Budget Expended Remaining

1. Vista Field
Pavilions

$3,300,000 $137,222 $3,162,778

2. Vista Field
Infrastructure

$1,325,000 $0 $1,325,000

3.   Vista Field Misc $350,000 $31,796 $318,204

4. Vista Field
 Parking

$500,000 $28,247 $471,753

5.   Vista Field 
       Satellite Shop

$500,000 $0 $500,000

6.   1135 Shoreline $500,000 $1,314 $498,686

7.   Clover Island $500,000 $0 $500,000

8.   Columbia Drive $450,000 $350,074 $99,926

9.   VFDF A Rehab $500,000 $0 $500,000

10.  Art Project $100,000 $0 $100,000

11.  City of 
 Richland

$300,000 $0 $300,000

12.  Asset 
 Replacement

$500,000 $0 $500,000

13. Opportunity 
       Fund

$125,000 $125,000 
Encumbered

$0

14. Misc. Capital $100,000 $0 $100,000



Vista Field Debt

• The current balance is 
approximately $3.8 Million

• The interest rate will increase 
from 2.85% to 3.45% in 
December 2023

• Total interest expense will be 
~$123k in 2024

• Interest rate will increase 
substantially in December 2028



Benton County Rural County Capital Funds

Accumulated
 as of 7/31/23

Funds Reimbursed 
to Port

Available 
Balance

$4,357,815 $ 497,001 $3,860,814* 

RCCF Balance

• $3,410,000 appropriated to Hangar Remodel*

• $450,814 unappropriated fund balance

• County will only let you encumber amount of fund 
balance at the time of project application

• Accrues at approximately $50k/month



Opportunity 
Fund

2023/2024 Budget:   $125,000

Project Encumbrance Approved

      Benton City Economic   
      Development $40,000 6/13/2023

CTUIR Advertising  
      Partnership $15,000 6/13/2023

Cable Bridge Lighting $25,000 6/13/2023

CI East Shoreline A&E $45,000 7/25/2023

TOTAL $   125,000 
Remaining

    Budget $               0 



Property Tax Summary
     2001 vs 2023

 $-

 $0.05

 $0.10

 $0.15

 $0.20

 $0.25

 $0.30

 $0.35

 $0.40

 $0.45

2001 Levy Rate Per Thousand 2023 Levy Rate Per Thousand

$0.44 

$0.24 

PROPERTY TAX SUMMARY 

Property Tax Levy Rate per thousand 
has fallen to only $0.24 in 2023!



Thank You
Nick Kooiker
Deputy CEO/CFO/Auditor
509-586-1186
nick@portofkennewick.org



     * Benchmarks  Revenues 25% Expenses

     * Ending Cash/Investments

     * Cash Restricted by Commission

     * Accounts, Notes, & Taxes Receivable

     * Total Assets

     * Total Liabilities (not including OPEB or Pension)

 DESCRIPTION 
 2023 & 2024  

BUDGET 
 2023 

ACTUAL 
 2024 

ACTUAL 
 2023/2024 

Actual Total 

 UNDER 
BUDGET 
(OVER) 

% 
Reached 
To Date

OPERATING REVENUES 

     Marine Division 685,754$               188,892$       188,892$             496,862 28%

     Property Management Division 1,726,707$          510,136$       510,136$             1,216,571 30%

          Total Operating Revenues 2,412,461$        699,028$     -$              699,028$          1,713,433 29%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Marine Division 813,801$               240,664$       240,664$             573,137 30%

     Property Management Division 4,007,474$          918,300$       918,300$             3,089,174 23%

     Corporate Division 4,249,640$          894,691$       894,691$             3,354,949 21%

          Total Operating Expenses 9,070,915$        2,053,654$  -$              2,053,654$       7,017,261 23%

     OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) (6,658,454)$       (1,354,626)$ -$              (1,354,626)$      

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 
     Real Estate Division - Gain (Loss) on Sale of        
Assets 500,000$               ‐$                 ‐$                       500,000 0%
     Economic Development & Planning Division 
Grants, Loan & Insurance Proceeds 5,300,000$          95,403$         95,403$                 5,204,597 2%

     Ad Valorem Tax 9,491,199$          4,892,402$    4,892,402$          4,598,797 52%

     Other Non-Operating Revenues -$                   4,684$         4,684$                   (4,684)  

     Interest Income ‐$                       152,504$       152,504$             (152,504) ‐

          Total Non-Operating Revenues 15,291,199$      5,144,993$  -$              5,144,993$       10,146,206 34%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

     Real Estate Division 275,759$               69,176$         69,176$                 206,583 25%

     Economic Development & Planning Division 733,280$               175,342$       175,342$             557,938 24%

     Public, Governmental Relations, and Other Non-
Operating Cost 2,847,260$          740,248$       740,248$             2,107,012 26%

     Bond Interest Expensee 245,368$               56,639$         56,639$                 188,730 23%

          Total Non-Operating Expenses 4,101,667$        984,766$     -$              984,766$          3,116,901 24%

Operating & Non-Operating Revenues Over 
Expenses (Under Expenses) 4,531,078$        2,805,601$  -$              2,805,601$       

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 9,723,374$          548,653$       548,653$             9,174,721 6%

25%

12,725,603$                                 

2,500,000$                                   

2,131,755$                                   

81,388,087$                                 

1,697,434$                                   

PORT OF KENNEWICK

Financial Highlights

UNAUDITED & IN DRAFT FORM ‐ ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Jan 1, 2023 through June 30, 2023

Financial Highlight Summary



 



  

 

          AGENDA REPORT  
 

 

TO:  Port Commission 

  

FROM:    Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy CEO 

 

MEETING DATE:    August 22, 2023 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution No. 2023-26 – RCO LPM Grant for Clover Island 

Deferred Maintenance Improvements 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

I. REFERENCE(S):  Resolution 2023-26; and WA State RCO Local Parks Maintenance Program 

Applicant Authorization document. 

 

II. FISCAL IMPACT:  No immediate impact since no match required; with potential for the Port to receive 

up to $100,000 in state funding to make deferred maintenance improvements.  

 

III. DISCUSSION:  It is the intent of the port staff to apply to the Recreation and Conservation Office 

(RCO) for a Local Parks Maintenance (LPM) grant to assist with repainting the boardwalk above the 

Clover Island Marina and to cover areas of graffiti tagging along the Riverwalk, re-staining the 

boardwalk/viewing platform at The Gathering Place and lighthouse door; repairing or replacing visitor 

signs/educational panels and restroom fixtures on Clover Island. This is a brand new, first-time 

authorized grant program which has NO MATCHING FUND requirement. However, RCO requires 

all applicants pass a resolution authorizing submittal of any grant application. This resolution would 

fulfill that RCO requirement and would allow staff to apply for LPM grant funding through the RCO. 

This grant application process opened August 15, 2023, and closes September 18, 2023, so time is of the 

essence.  

 

IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 2023-26, authorizing submittal of application to 

the Recreation and Conservation Office’s Local Parks Maintenance Program (LPM) to allow the port to 

complete deferred maintenance activities (painting, staining, repairing signs, etc.) at Clover Island, and 

authorizing the Port’s Chief Executive Officer to execute all documents necessary for submittal of the 

grant application. 

 

V. ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION:   

 

Motion: I move approval of Resolution 2023-26 authorizing the Chief 

Executive Officer to make formal application to the Recreation and 

Conservation Office for Local Park Maintenance grant funding; and ratify and 

approve all action by port officers and employees in furtherance hereof. 



PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 

Resolution No. 2023-26 
 

 RCO LPM Grant Request for Deferred Maintenance 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK 
AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR FUNDING ASSISTANCE FOR A LOCAL PARKS 

MAINTENANCE (LPM) GRANT TO THE WA ST RECREATION AND CONSERVATION 
OFFICE (RCO) 

 
WHEREAS, our organization understands there is an opportunity to receive up to $100,000 in 

funding and there is no match required for the Local Parks Maintenance (LPM) grant;  
 
WHEREAS, we belief there are significant public benefits to undertaking actions to re-paint, re-

stain, and repair areas of deferred maintenance at Clover Island; and 
 

WHEREAS, we acknowledge the LPM grant, if approved, will be paid on a reimbursement 
basis; and  
 

WHEREAS, we understand that the attached LPM authorization document and this resolution 
becomes part of a formal application to the Recreation and Conservation Office.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Tim Arntzen, Chief Executive Officer of the 
Port of Kennewick is hereby authorized to make formal application to the Recreation and Conservation 
Office for Local Park Maintenance grant funding; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Commissioners hereby ratify and approve all action by 
port officers and employees in furtherance hereof; 
 
This resolution shall be effective immediately upon passage and signature by the Port of Kennewick 
Commissioners. 
 

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Port of Kennewick this 22nd day of August 
2023, located at Clover Island in Kennewick. 
 
       PORT OF KENNEWICK 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

By: 
 

  SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President 
 

      By: 
 
       KEN HOHENBERG, Vice President 

 
By:  
 
  THOMAS MOAK, Secretary 



 
 

Local Parks Maintenance Program 
Applicant Authorization and Electronic Signature  

 
Organization Name (sponsor)    

Resolution No. or Document Name  

Project Number and Name    

This resolution/authorization authorizes the person(s) identified below (in Section 2) to act as the 
authorized representative/agent on behalf of our organization and to legally bind our organization 
with respect to the above Project for which we seek grant funding assistance managed through the 
Recreation and Conservation Office (Office). 

 
WHEREAS grant assistance is requested by our organization to aid in financing the cost of the 
Project referenced above; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 

 
1. Our organization has applied for or intends to apply for funding assistance managed by the 

Office for the above “Project.” 
 

2. Our organization authorizes the following persons or persons holding specified 
titles/positions (and subsequent holders of those titles/positions) to execute the 
following documents binding our organization on the above projects: 

 

 
 

 

Grant Document Routing 
Order 

Name of Signatory and Title of 
Person Authorized to Sign 

Email Address 

Grant application (submission 
thereof) 

   

Project contact (day-to-day 
administering of the grant and 
communicating with the RCO) 

   

Agreement/amendment approver1    
Agreement/amendment approver    
Agreement/amendment approver    
Agreement/amendment approver    
RCO Grant Agreement signer2    
Agreement amendments signer2    



The above persons are considered an “authorized representative(s)/agent(s)” for purposes of the 
documents indicated. Our organization shall comply with a request from the RCO to provide 
updated documentation of authorized signers, if needed. 

3. Our organization acknowledges and warrants, after conferring with its legal counsel, that its
authorized representative(s)/agent(s) have full legal authority to act and sign on behalf of the
organization for their assigned role/document.

4. Grant assistance is contingent on a signed Agreement. Entering into any Agreement with
the Office is purely voluntary on our part.

5. Our organization understands that grant policies and requirements vary depending on the
grant program applied to, the grant program and source of funding in the Agreement, the
characteristics of the project, and the characteristics of our organization.

6. Any grant assistance received will be used for only direct eligible and allowable costs that are
reasonable and necessary to implement the project(s) referenced above.

7. Our organization acknowledges that the grant will only be used for maintenance of local park
property owned by our organization.

8. This resolution/authorization is deemed to be part of the formal grant application to the Office.

9. Our organization warrants and certifies that this resolution/authorization was properly and
lawfully adopted following the requirements of our organization and applicable laws and
policies and that our organization has full legal authority to commit our organization to the
warranties, certifications, promises, and obligations set forth herein.

This resolution/authorization is signed and approved on behalf of the resolving body of our 
organization by the following authorized member(s): 

Signed 

Title  Date 

On File at: 

This Applicant Resolution/Authorization was adopted by our organization during the meeting 
held:  

Location:  Date: 

You may reproduce the above language in your own format; however, text may not change. 



 

 
1 Agreement/Amendment Approver: refers to an individual or several individuals who review and approve the 
electronic document and contacts RCO if corrections are needed. The approver does not sign the document. 
You may add more than one approver but please designate the order for routing purposes. 
 
2 RCO Grant Agreement/Agreement Amendments Signer: refers to the individual who must officially sign the 
document with an electronic signature and may be required to enter data such as title, date, agency name, etc. 
into fields. The signer of Agreements may differ from the individual who is delegated to sign Amendment 
documents, but we can only accept one signature per document.  
 


	2 BFCOG Amended Interlocal Agreement 19MAY23.pdf
	1A Resolution Adopting New BFCOG Interlocal Agreement
	1B BFCOG Interlocal Agreement Amd. 19MAY23

	Exhibit A Vista Field ArtWalk Presentation.pdf
	Vista field artwalk
	Introduction
	Local�partnerships
	Local news coverage
	Event photos
	Summary

	08.22.2023 2023-24 Mid Year Budget Update Presentation.pdf
	2023 Mid-Year Budget Review�2023-2024 Budget
	Budget Disclosures
	Operating Division
	Non-Operating Division
	Slide Number 5
	Vista Field Debt
	 RCCF Balance
	Opportunity �Fund
	 
	Thank You

	Blank Page

	Organization Name sponsor: Port of Kennewick
	Resolution No or Document Name: 2023-26
	Project Number and Name:  #23-1546 MNT; Clover Island painting, staining, repairing signs, etc.
	Name of Signatory and Title of Person Authorized to SignGrant application submission thereof: Tim Arntzen, Chief Executive Officer
	Email AddressGrant application submission thereof: ta@PortofKennewick.org
	Name of Signatory and Title of Person Authorized to SignProject contact daytoday administering of the grant and communicating with the RCO: Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy CEO
	Email AddressProject contact daytoday administering of the grant and communicating with the RCO: tana@PortofKennewick.org
	Name of Signatory and Title of Person Authorized to SignAgreementamendment approver 1: 
	Email AddressAgreementamendment approver 1: 
	Name of Signatory and Title of Person Authorized to SignAgreementamendment approver: 
	Email AddressAgreementamendment approver: 
	Name of Signatory and Title of Person Authorized to SignAgreementamendment approver_2: 
	Email AddressAgreementamendment approver_2: 
	Name of Signatory and Title of Person Authorized to SignAgreementamendment approver_3: 
	Email AddressAgreementamendment approver_3: 
	Name of Signatory and Title of Person Authorized to SignRCO Grant Agreement signer2: 
	Email AddressRCO Grant Agreement signer2: 
	Name of Signatory and Title of Person Authorized to SignAgreement amendments signer2: 
	Email AddressAgreement amendments signer2: 
	Dropdown3: [1]
	Dropdown4: [2]
	Dropdown5: [3]
	Dropdown6: [4]
	Signed: 
	Title: Tim Arntzen, Chief Executive Officer
	Date: 
	On File at: Port of Kennewick, 350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick WA 99336
	Location: Board of Commissioners regular Commission Meeting
	Date_2: 08-22-2023
	1 AgreementAmendment Approver refers to an individual or several individuals who review and approve the: 


